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Mine no Ura

ZEDi#

Buddhist monks and mountain ascetics meditated and trained in the area known as Mine no Ura
for more than a thousand years. The area’s natural and historic religious sites are connected via a
hiking path, with a trailhead located near the grounds of Senjuin Kannon-do Temple, and another
at Yamadera Cemetery.

Senjuin Kannon-do Temple enshrines Senju Kannon, the thousand-armed form of the
bodhisattva of compassion. From the temple, a short stroll through the forest leads to Tarumizu,
a site used for ascetic practices until the early 1900s. The site is marked by a hollow in a massive
rock wall dotted with honeycomb-like depressions formed through erosion by water. The torii
gate of Furumine Shrine stands inside, along with a small shrine to the harvest deity, Inari. A
nearby cleft in the cliffside contains a statue of the Buddhist deity Fudo Myo-o, the Immovable
Wisdom King.

Farther along the trail are the Shiro-iwa Nana-iwa, seven massive rocks said to resemble the
outer walls of a castle when viewed together from afar. Beyond, the trail opens into a clearing
surrounded by several distinct rock formations. This area was likely used for special religious
ceremonies.

There is another clearing near the Yamadera Cemetery trailhead, where Mine no Ura’s main
temple once stood. The temple honored Amida Nyorai, the Buddha of Infinite Light. While the
structure no longer remains, an archeological dig unearthed parts of the temple’s foundation,
artifacts dating back to the fourteenth century, and remnants of pottery from the Jomon period
(10,000-300 BCE).

Mine no Ura
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Mine no Ura

ZEDi#

Buddhist monks and mountain ascetics meditated and trained in the area known as Mine no Ura
for more than a thousand years. The area’s natural and historic religious sites are connected by a
hiking path accessible via trailheads at Senjuin Kannon-do Temple and Yamadera Cemetery.

Senjuin Kannon-do Temple enshrines Senju Kannon, the thousand-armed form of the
bodhisattva of compassion. It is the second stop on a local pilgrimage of 33 temples dedicated to
Kannon. Visitors can enter the main hall to pay their respects and offer a donation. Displayed on
the walls inside are paper talismans (ofuda) of various colors. Pilgrims write a prayer on these
strips of paper and hang them on the walls of each temple along the route. The color of the
talisman shows how many times a pilgrim has completed the journey; gold seals, which indicate
over 10 circuits, are exceedingly rare.

From the temple, a short stroll through the forest leads to Tarumizu, a site that was used for
ascetic practices until the early 1900s. The site is marked by a hollow in a massive rock wall
dotted with honeycomb-like depressions that formed through erosion by water. The torii gate of
Furumine Shrine stands inside, along with a small shrine to the harvest deity, Inari. Beyond the
hollow, next to a towering cedar tree, there is a gated cleft in the cliff. Inside is a statue of the
Buddhist deity Fudo Myo-0, the Immovable Wisdom King.

Farther along, the trail becomes overgrown and more difficult to traverse. Along the path are
seven rocks known as the Shiro-iwa Nana-iwa, so-named because they resemble the outer walls
of a shiro (castle) when viewed together from afar. Some of the rocks provide a commanding
view of the surrounding valley.

Beyond the Shiro-iwa Nana-iwa, the trail leads to an open clearing with several distinct rock
formations. The area was likely used by ascetics for rituals. A small cave past the clearing
contains stone gorinto (five-ringed tower) grave markers. There used to be more, but over the
years many gorinto were taken away or collapsed. Some that remain date from the Kamakura
period (1185-1333).

The former location of Mine no Ura’s main temple is in another clearing, near the Yamadera
Cemetery trailhead. The temple honored Amida Nyorai, the Buddha of Infinite Light. Though
the structure no longer remains, an archeological dig of the site unearthed parts of the temple’s
foundation, artifacts dating back to the fourteenth century, and remnants of pottery from the
Jomon period (10,000-300 BCE).

The final stretch of the trail leads from the temple ruins to the Yamadera Cemetery. This was the
approach to Mine no Ura’s main temple, and two engraved stones mark the entrance to the
grounds. One stone represents Gozutenno, a bull-headed guardian deity. The other represents
Shinbonyoten, one of the attendants of the Thousand-Armed Kannon. The Yamadera temple
complex is a short walk from the cemetery.
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Shozoin Temple

AR R

Until the Edo period (1603-1867), monks lived and trained at 12 temple buildings at Yamadera,
on the slopes of Mt. Hoju. Shozoin is one of just four that remain. Images of Amida Nyorai, the
Celestial Buddha, and Bishamonten (one of Buddhism’s Four Heavenly Kings) are the objects of
worship within this hall. The statue of Amida is said to have been carved by Yamadera’s
founder, the monk Ennin (794-864). The figure of Bishamonten is the work of Unkei (1150—
1223), one of the most distinguished sculptors of Buddhist statuary of his time.

The temple also contains a mortuary tablet for Yoshihime (1548-1623), the mother of Date
Masamune (1567-1636), a powerful daimyo who controlled a large part of northeastern Japan,
and founded the nearby city of Sendai in Miyagi Prefecture.

Shozoin Temple
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Konjoin Temple

Tk

Until the Edo period (1603-1867), monks lived and trained at 12 temple buildings at Yamadera,
on the slopes of Mt. Hoju. Konjoin is one of just four that remain, and the current temple
building dates to 1840. The principal image of Konjoin is the bodhisattva Jizo, guardian of
children and savior of all sentient beings. The statue on the altar inside the temple depicts the
deity flanked by two children. On Jizo’s left is Shoaku holding a vajra, a mythical, indestructible
club symbolizing triumph over worldly desire. Shozen, on the right, holds a white lotus leaf
which represents purity. Many smaller Jizo statues adorn the walls around the altar. These are the
Sentai Jizo (literally “one thousand,” meaning “countless”), deities that watch over the forgotten
departed, those in unknown or untended graves.

Konjoin Temple
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Chushoin Temple
B

Until the Edo period (1603-1867), monks lived and trained at 12 temple buildings at Yamadera,
on the slopes of Mt. Hoju. Chushoin is one of just four that remain. The principal object of
worship at Chushoin is Amida Nyorai, the Celestial Buddha. One of the roles of the Amida is to
lead departed souls to paradise. Behind the hall, there is a funerary monument to the Tozawa
family, former rulers of Dewa Province (present-day Yamagata). Across from the temple is a
monument to Mogami Yoshiaki (1546-1614), who was a powerful daimyo of the Yamagata
domain. In front of the hall is a statue of the arhat Binzuru, depicted sitting cross-legged in the
lotus position. Believers with ailments rub the corresponding part of the statue’s body in hopes of
receiving Binzuru’s blessing of healing.

Chushoin Temple
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Kezoin Temple
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Until the Edo period (1603-1867), monks lived and trained at 12 temple buildings at Yamadera,
on the slopes of Mt. Hoju. Kezoin is one of just four that remain. Several deities are enshrined at
Kezoin, including Kannon, the bodhisattva of compassion. On the altar within the hall is a statue
of Kannon said to have been carved by Ennin (794-864), the founder of Yamadera. Outside the
temple, in an alcove carved into a nearby rock face, is a 2.5-meter-tall, three-story pagoda. The
pagoda is a distinct vermilion color, with gilded filigree decorating the woodwork of the eaves. It
was built in 1519 and designated an Important Cultural Property in 1952. It is the smallest three-
story pagoda in Japan and houses a statue of the Amida Nyorai, the Celestial Buddha.

Kezoin Temple

R

LR (1603 £~ 1867 F)F T, BELEEEHKRILOMEICIIOWFD 12 DFRETEFEL. BITEZTE
~NTWEUE, ERbR. IRETS 4 20FRD 1 DT, E@ikld. ZEDLTHIBRELESE. HHO
HARETES>TVET, EROREBICTEON TS ER B, ILFZRILUEE. F{Z (794 F£~864 £F)
EEEDNTVET . FEEOHMCIE. ECDBENICIEONTZEBDOFRIC. BT 25 A—MNIO=EDEHIHDF
T, COBBFHMLEARTELNTH. REDVSLOFEIEEEHE LR EHM I THoNTLET,
1519 FE(CEFRSINTECOEWIL. 1952 F(CEEXEBICIEESNELE, COEIE. BAERATRL/NE
W=FBT,. KBMEEGHLESNTNET,



| | 023-007 |

Nyohodo (Okunoin)
IEE (Bokk)

The journey up 1,015 steps to the top of the Yamadera temple complex ends at the Okunoin
inner sanctuary. The Okunoin comprises two buildings: the Nyohodo Hall (right) and the
Daibutsuden Great Buddha Hall (left).

The Nyohodo is the Hall of Buddha’s Teachings. Here, monks-in-training practice a labor-
intensive form of sutra copying established by Yamadera’s founder, the monk Ennin (794-864).
Trainees use mugwort brushes and graphite ink to copy the Lotus Sutra one character at a time.
After each character, they prostrate themselves and recite the sutra in its entirety three times. As
a result, copying all eight scrolls of the Lotus Sutra can take up to four years. Completed copies
are enshrined in the Nokyodo sutra hall as an offering to Ennin during leap years on November
28.

The Nyohodo enshrines statues of Shakyamuni, the historical Buddha, and Taho Nyorai, the
Buddha of Abundant Treasures.
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Daibutsuden (Okunoin)
KILEE (BOBR)

The journey up 1,015 steps to the top of the Yamadera temple complex ends at the Okunoin
inner sanctuary. This journey to the inner sanctuary is said to vanquish the worldly desires of any
who make it.

The Okunoin is made up of two buildings: the Nyohodo Hall (right) and the Daibutsuden Great
Buddha Hall (left). The Daibutsuden houses a 4.8-meter-tall, gold-leaf-covered seated statue of
the Celestial Buddha, Amida Nyorai.

Daibutsuden (Okunoin)
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Shishi-odori
iy

One of Yamadera’s largest annual events is the Banji Matsuri. This summer festival is held in
early August to celebrate the legacy of the larger-than-life hunter, Banji Banzaburo (dates
unknown). Banji was the warden of the mountain and played an essential role in the founding of
the temple. According to legend, Banji met with the monk Ennin (794-864) on the Taimenseki
(“Meeting Rock™), a boulder at the foot of Mt. Hoju. There, Ennin spoke of his goal to establish
a place to spread the teachings of the Buddha in northern Japan. Banji was so moved by Ennin’s
vision that he donated the land, and gave up hunting in the area. Upon hearing this, the animals
of the mountain gathered in front of the Taimenseki and danced for joy.

This legend is the basis for the shishi-odori lion dance, one of the main events of the Banji
Matsuri. Participants gather at the Taimendo, a shrine next to the Taimenseki which houses
statues of both Ennin and Banji. Costumed troupes from the area perform lively dances
accompanied by traditional music. Forming a procession, they move to the upper reaches of
Yamadera, stopping to perform at the Konpon Chudo main hall, and the Kaisando, the hall
dedicated to Yamadera’s founder.

Shishi—odori
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Konpon Chudo
RAFE

A sacred flame has burned for centuries in the Konpon Chudo, Yamadera’s main hall, gently
illuminating its inner sanctum. The hall lies at the base of Mt. Hoju and is the first building
visitors encounter on their way to the top of the temple complex. Yamadera is a branch temple of
Enryakuji, the headquarters of Tendai Buddhism, which is located on Mt. Hiei, a sacred peak
that straddles Kyoto and Shiga prefectures. The Konpon Chudo enshrines Yakushi Nyorai, the
Buddha of Healing.

The Konpon Chudo is one of Yamadera’s oldest buildings, and an Important Cultural Property. It
was originally built after Yamadera’s founding by the monk Ennin (794-864) in 860. The main
structure was rebuilt in 1356 by Shiba Kaneyori (1329-1379), the first lord of Yamagata Castle,
and may be the oldest beechwood structure in Japan. The single-story hall has a wide-sweeping
hip-and-gable roof, a style known as irimoya-zukuri. This style originated in China and is often
seen in Buddhist architecture.

Konpon Chudo’s sacred inner sanctum is open to the public. A wooden statue of Yakushi Nyorali
is kept in a zushi (double-doored shrine) in its center. Ennin may have carved the statue, which is
only displayed for public viewing once every 50 years. Statues of the bodhisattvas of sunlight
and moonlight flank the shrine, which is surrounded by statues of the 12 divine generals that
guard Yakushi Nyorai.

The sacred flame known as the “Undying Light of Buddhism” burns before the shrine. Ennin
carried this flame from Enryakuji to commemorate Yamadera’s founding. Over the centuries,
both Yamadera and Enryakuji’s flames have gone out at different times. However, when one
flame died, it was relit with the other. Through the shared legacy of the two temples, the same
flame has burned for over 1,200 years.

A statue of Manju, the bodhisattva of wisdom, rests in the right corner of the inner sanctum. The
statue once sat in its own hall, the Manjudo, but it was transferred to the Konpon Chudo
following a fire. A statue of Bishamonten, a fierce god of war who is one of Buddhism's Four
Heavenly Kings, stands in the left corner.

Konpon Chudo
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Yako Nenbutsu
w71

Worshippers chant rhythmically, illuminated by the soft glow of stone lanterns as they make
their way to the inner sanctuary of Yamadera during the yako nenbutsu nighttime pilgrimage.
This sacred Buddhist ceremony begins on August 6, when participants gather in prayer in front
of Yamadera’s main hall, the Konpon Chudo. As the sun sets the procession makes its way up
the mountain, stopping at each temple building along the way to recite the nenbutsu, a prayer to
the Celestial Buddha, Amida Nyorai. Once they reach the Okunoin, Yamadera’s inner sanctuary,
they pray and stop to rest for the night.

The worshippers wake at 5 a.m. the next morning. The procession continues to the Kaisando, a
hall dedicated to Yamadera’s founder, Ennin (794-864), and the Godaido, a cliffside hall where
Buddhism’s Five Wisdom Kings are venerated. From there, they make their way back down the
mountain.

The yako nenbutsu ceremony is registered Intangible Cultural Heritage. It is closed to the public.

Yako Nenbutsu
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Basho Haiku Monument
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The traveling haiku poet Matsuo Basho (1644-1694) undertook a 156-day journey from Edo
(present-day Tokyo) through Japan’s northern Tohoku and Hokuriku regions in 1689. He
traveled mostly on foot, accompanied by his disciple Kawai Sora (1649-1710). Together they
followed in the footsteps of Saigyo (1118-1190), a poet Basho greatly admired, and visited many
sites made famous by old poems. Their journey was the basis for Oku no hosomichi (Narrow
Road to the Deep North), Basho’s travel narrative of poetry and prose.

Basho and Sora visited Yamadera on July 13, though the mountainside temple was not one of
their planned destinations. They went at the suggestion of residents of Obanazawa, a nearby
town where they had lodged. Inspired by the beauty and tranquility of the temple complex,
Basho composed his cicada haiku:

shizukasa ya Such stillness—
iwa ni shimiiru The cries of the cicadas
semi no koe Sink into the rocks

(Translated by Donald Keene)

A stone monument inscribed with the haiku (kuhi), along with a statue of Basho and Sora, rests
near Yamadera's entrance. There is another monument dedicated to Basho’s cicada haiku, the
Semizuka, on the path to the upper reaches of the temple grounds.

Oku no hosomichi was Basho’s final work, and his most popular. The cicada haiku is one of his
most celebrated poems, and is studied at schools around Japan. Displays relating to Basho's life
and works can be seen at the Yamadera Basho Memorial Museum, which is a short walk from
Yamadera Station.

Basho Haiku Monument
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Hojuzan Risshakuyji
RN ATF

More than one thousand stone steps lead to the uppermost reaches of Risshakuji, the mountain
temple complex also known as Yamadera. The complex is built on the forested slopes of
Yamagata Prefecture’s sacred Mt. Hoju, and the journey to the top and back is a vicarious
experience of samsara, the Buddhist cycle of rebirth. Through the Sanmon Gate, which sits at
the main entrance to the temple grounds, visitors gradually pass into the “afterlife.” As they
ascend the mountain, they are purified. After meditation and prayer at the top, they descend, and
are born anew with the teachings of Buddhism.

The monk Ennin (794-864) founded Risshakuji in 860 while traveling the frontiers of northern
Japan to spread Buddhism on orders of the emperor. Risshakuji is a branch temple of Enryakuji,
the headquarters of Tendai Buddhism located on Mt. Hiei, a sacred peak which straddles Kyoto
and Shiga prefectures. Ennin was the third head of the Tendai school, a form of Buddhism
brought to Japan from China.

The base of the mountain

The entrance to the temple complex is a short walk from Yamadera Station, past several shops
and restaurants. Konpon Chudo, Yamadera’s main hall, is the first building that visitors reach. It
houses a statue of Yakushi Nyorai, the Buddha of Healing, which Ennin may have carved
himself. Konpon Chudo also contains a sacred flame known as the “Undying Light of
Buddhism,” which Ennin brought from Enryakuji. Over the centuries, when the flame in one of
the temples went out, it was relit using the other. In this way, the flame shared between the
temples has burned for over 1,200 years.

Past the Konpon Chudo, there is a statue of the famous poet Matsuo Basho (1644-1694), as well
as a stone monument inscribed with his well-known cicada haiku. Basho wrote the haiku while
visiting Yamadera, inspired by the temple’s sublime tranquility. It is included in his famous
collection of poetry and prose, Oku no hosomichi (Narrow Road to the Deep North). This
celebrated work is a travelogue of Basho’s journey—undertaken mostly on foot—from Edo
(present-day Tokyo) through the northern part of Honshu Island. Another monument to Basho’s
cicada haiku, the Semizuka (“Cicada Mound”), is farther up the mountain.

The journey through samsara and up the mountain begins from the Sanmon Gate, after visitors
pass the Hobutsuden Hall, the Nenbutsu Hall, and Hie Shrine.

Ascending the mountain

A path lined with stone lanterns winds past statues and through towering trees to the Ubado Hall,
a symbolic gateway between heaven above and the underworld below. It houses a striking statue
of Datsueba, a fearsome old woman who strips the dead of their clothes before they cross the
Sanzu River, which separates the world of the living from the realm of the dead. Traditionally,
worshippers cleansed themselves at Ubado Hall, offered their clothes to Datsueba, and changed



into new attire before continuing up the mountain. This was a symbolic shedding of their worldly
sins and desires.

Farther up the mountain, near the Semizuka monument, there is a weathered rock face called the
Midahora. Over time, the elements have naturally carved the stone so that it evokes the image of
Amida Nyorai, the Celestial Buddha. Visitors who can see the likeness are thought to receive
Amida’s blessing.

The Niomon Gate marks the halfway point up the mountain. Fierce Nio guardian statues flank
the path through the structure, warding off evil. Beyond, there are four temple buildings:
Shozoin, Konjoin, Chushoin, and Kezoin.

Rebirth

Past the four temple buildings, visitors come upon the upper reaches of Risshakuji, which
represent heaven. Here, visitors meditate on the teachings of Buddhism in preparation for rebirth.
The path splits, with one branch leading up to the complex’s innermost buildings—the Nyohodo
Hall and the Daibutsuden Great Buddha Hall—which are collectively referred to as the Okunoin.
The Nyohodo Hall enshrines statues of Shakyamuni, the historical Buddha, and Taho Nyorai, the
Buddha of Abundant Treasures. The monk Ennin is said to have brought both statues back with
him from China after studying Buddhism there. The neighboring Daibutsuden Great Buddha
Hall contains a 4.8-meter-tall golden statue of Amida Nyorai.

The other branch leads to the Kaisando, a hall honoring Ennin. Enshrined within is a wooden
statue of the founder, to which monks offer food both morning and night. The small red structure
perched on the nearby rock outcropping is the Nokyodo sutra hall. This building is storage for
sutras copied by monks in training. A narrow stairway leads to the Godaido, a hall built on the
cliffside above the Kaisando. It offers an unobstructed view of the temple complex and the valley
below.

Hojuzan Risshakuiji

FEKRILUIZAF

1 FERULDERELDE, ILOP(CHIEHOHEZEDREAT, ILFELTHONSILAFORKRLERIC
EELET, L ROMEGEHRILOFEREICEILSN TSN, CCETOEEREY LYS CKiED
BAE BHE OBKREREBNDET , FORANEMICAET ST, SINEARERAICTEE IICADE
T, IWEENGHL, SIEFEBRFHONTNEET , LTEBEFEEZR AL, SHEBRTIWERRD. L
DEAEFITHTICEINET

FEEKETMZ (794~864 &) (3. REDECINMLAZKELHZH. ILARE ADDFEFRLUIGH S, 860 F
(S AFZRELELZ, LAFE. REBEZECFLNBLEBLOXREREARIL, EEFDHFECT .
BEXMACE, PEMSBEANERULZREROE SHREEETLL,

EERILE
SBRFAOANOE. WHFERNMIEFRHPRBNERERENBE O LS IVEEIACHNET , ILFOHRA
ETHIRATZR ., SNERICRMCEETIEYMTT . CCICBERMATHEREMNKILEN L E



SNTHD. BEKREACHBLINERLESNTVNET BATE(CIE, BEKREIACHEREFHLHHF
STCELETEHNET  BHLLICHED, WINDDFOXNEZBZE. EI—HFDFORXRTHULTSNTESE
Utzo CODEICLT, FRDELTIE 1,200 F L EICHE> TR AT TUVET,

BAPEEATFDIE. FREM- R EE (1644~1694 ££) DiRE. BENVF L LEOEANEINEHET
EAHNET, BER. L AFOEEGERESICAFEIN., IWFEFNCRCEOSEaEKMHE UL, BOHE
AL, BRABEEIBDEEENICEENTVET ., COERBERE IF RENER) hoEILMAFE
TEFEAERS TRUEBEDIRITTT , EEDEOEANES 1 DO THIBHIFIL, LLOSHIC
BZHNFET,

WEED, Y LYSZRIMRIRIE ., TV, SE . BRAHER TR OIWLMNLIEEIET

EKILEED

RO SEZER  FEBPEVAILORAEBELECHIEER ., 20N EDBREEHHT DM
RORICHIRBHIBIATT . BZC, £RTOHFEIEROMRERTE =20 OFR TIEEA D E
FEEMBMHNEE - BEREDBHDONGBIHONTNET  BETIINDT, SEFEELENLHEFD.
EXRECALDEYEEML. BILERITSAICHLVEDISEBEATVELE, Chid, SEEOHEBH
RERBENERTEVORBHGEETLL.

SBIBBE, HHEORHOEIEREIFENSAMICH N BENBNET , BALIIION, Z0
HEERICHIGNTIE IR EHHSEIELELE U, FIRRRMEORCRADALE, F
HNBBLEONTIET.

CEME. LOFREMRZERLUTCVET . ERIATHEIEYORmBICES ., BOEORALLBNLIICLT
WET . ZOFEICIE, EAERE. £ BT, Ptk ZERBRELS 4 2OFHHIET

oA

TARFOLREIEING 4 DDFIREAETISFRICH), BREERLTVET, CCTIE BADEBREHLER
EEATLBDOHEZIOVWTERULET , COEESET DI LTNT, 55 1 2ld. HEICHIE DR (fh
BEEXRILEB) (OB TVET, MR E(CEELENBILATHIRNERE. EEREMATHIZEM
FEDBHITEONTVET, ChoD g, BEACHAIETILAZREZALRIC, FEILEFBIFREEHN
TWET, BEOKRILBRDRICEEE 4.8 A— MO LML, FIIRFEIIEEHEHHONTNET,

LI—HOHSER . BEXREIA{CERZFILEICOBHN>TOET, 205(CE. BIEFEOKRKENENE
ESNTHI. BEEH, iR, BAYEHATNET  BIEME(CEH U TV S RIVNSGEYH., MEET
T MR, BITHOEENEEELEMREMHITHDIEATTT , RUBEERE. MALUEZED EOfEEE
(CETONEEREZICHRVTVET , EXRENLE, LAFERTOEAE. MICEHELSNT (CBkHZ N
TEEY,



| | 023-014 |

Datsueba and Ubado Hall
ERELRE

In Buddhism it is believed that the deceased must cross the Sanzu River, which lies at the border
between this world and the afterlife. The riverside is guarded by the fearsome watchwoman,
Datsueba, who forces those who would cross into the next world to shed their clothes. Her
companion, the demon Keneo, hangs the clothes on a tree branch to measure the weight of their
sins.

A striking depiction of Datsueba is housed within Ubado Hall, a small building along the stone
path to the top of Yamadera. The hall is a symbolic gateway between paradise above and hell
below. In the past, worshippers shed their clothes and cleansed their bodies, symbolically
purifying their spirits with water from a small stream that trickled down the mountain. They
offered their clothes to Datsueba and changed into new attire before continuing upward. With
each step, worldly sins and desires are said to be gradually extinguished.

Datsueba and Ubado Hall
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Semizuka (“Cicada Mound”)
B HIK

The famed haiku poet Matsuo Basho (1644-1694) undertook a 156-day journey from Edo
(present-day Tokyo) through Japan’s northern Tohoku and Hokuriku regions in 1689. He
traveled mostly on foot, accompanied by his disciple Kawai Sora (1649-1710). Together, they
followed in the footsteps of Saigyo, (1118-1190), a poet Basho greatly admired, and visited
many sites Saigyo and others famously captured in verse. Their journey was the basis for Oku no
hosomichi (Narrow Road to the Deep North), a travel narrative that blends poetry and prose.

Basho and Sora visited Yamadera—on the thirteenth day of the seventh month of the lunar
calendar—at the suggestion of residents of Obanazawa, a nearby town where they had lodged.
Inspired by the tranquility and beauty of the forested mountain temple complex, he composed his
cicada haiku:

shizukasa ya Such stillness—
iwa ni shimiiru The cries of the cicadas
semi no koe Sinks into the rocks

(Translated by Donald Keene)

The Semizuka (“Cicada Mound”) stone monument stands along the path to Yamadera’s upper
reaches. Throughout the years many poets have visited to pay their respects, including famed
local poet and essayist Mokichi Saito (1882-1953).

Semizuka (“Cicada Mound”)
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Nokyodo and Kaisando
EECRILE

Nokyodo

The remains of Yamadera’s founder, the monk Ennin (794-864), are said to rest in a coffin—
once encrusted with gold—beneath the Nokyodo, a small, red sutra hall perched on a cliff in the
upper reaches of Yamadera. At Yamadera, monks copy sutras as part of their training. The
copying process takes up to four years. Once they finish, they ritualistically place the sutras in
the Nokyodo as an offering to Ennin. The original structure was repaired in 1987. It is an
Important Prefectural Property, and one of Yamadera’s most iconic sights.

Kaisando

The Kaisando is a hall next to the Nokyodo. The hall enshrines a wooden statue of the founder,

to which monks make offerings of food and incense both morning and night. It is only open one
day each year—January 14, the anniversary of Ennin’s death. On this day, a Buddhist memorial
service is held in his honor. The current hall dates from the mid-1800s.

Nokyodo and Kaisando
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Godaido Hall
AKE

Godaido is a cliffside hall in the upper reaches of Yamadera. Enshrined there are the Godai Myo-
o, the “Five Wisdom Kings” who are fearsome guardians of the Buddhist faith.

Godaido overlooks the entire mountain temple complex and is visible from as far away as
Yamadera Station below. The hall is built on stilts and protrudes from the cliffside. Access is via
a narrow stone stairway that is easily overlooked, leading upward from the Kaisando, the hall
dedicated to Yamadera’s founder. The vista looking out from Godaido is an unobstructed view
of the temple complex and the valley below.

Godaido Hall
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Midahora
FRPeiR

The Midahora is a large, weathered rock face along the path to Yamadera’s upper reaches. Over
the centuries the elements have carved the rock into something evoking a 4.8-meter-tall image of
the Celestial Buddha, Amida Nyorai. Visitors who can make out the likeness are thought to
receive Amida’s blessing.

Mortuary tablets are carved into the rock beneath the image, and wooden funerary objects called
gosho-guruma lean against the base of the rock face. The gosho-guruma are inscribed with the
posthumous Buddhist names of the deceased and have a spinnable prayer wheel. Sutras are
written on the wheel, and rotating them is symbolic of reciting the sutra.

Midahora
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Niomon Gate

{—Em

Visitors passing through the Niomon Gate endure the unflinching glare of fearsome Nio
guardians positioned on either side. Naraen is on the right, mouth open as if to utter a, and
Misshaku is on the left, lips pursed as if pronouncing un. These two syllables are the Japanese
pronunciation of the first and last letters of the Sanskrit alphabet, and together symbolize birth
and death of all things, among other things. Statues of Enma, the King of Hell, and nine judges
stand inside the gate, as if to judge all who pass through.

The Niomon Gate is the halfway point to the top of the Yamadera temple complex. It was rebuilt
in 1848 using zelkova wood and is one of the temple’s newer structures. The Nio statues are
thought to be the work of the disciples of Unkei (1150-1223), one of the most distinguished
sculptors of Buddhist statuary of his time.

Niomon Gate
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Tainai-kuguri and Tainai Hall
RRARKCY EiaNE

The Tainai Hall is a small, single-story building constructed on the side of a cliff in the upper
reaches of Yamadera. Priests would reach the building by crossing a crevasse spanned by a
worn, horizontal wooden ladder, and then crawling through a narrow stone grotto called the
Tainai-kuguri. Tainai literally means “womb,” and passing through the grotto is considered
symbolic of spiritual rebirth.

The hall was used for meditation and other ascetic practices, and enshrines six images of the
bodhisattva Jizo, the savior of all sentient beings. It is closed to the public.

Tainai—kuguri and Tainai Hall
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Crown Prince Commemorative Hall (Web)
RE{TERIK

On September 18, 1908, Crown Prince Yoshihito, the future Emperor Taisho (1879-1926),
visited Yamadera. The imperial visit greatly raised national awareness of Yamadera as a tourist
destination and is considered an integral factor to its 1932 designation as a Place of Scenic
Beauty and Historic Site. The building constructed in the upper reaches of the temple complex as
a place for the prince to rest during his visit is now known as the Crown Prince Commemorative
Hall.

Crown Prince Commemorative Hall (Web)
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Nabetaro and the Yamagata Imoni Festival (Sign)

MABBELEREFESE (ER)

On cold autumn days, many people in Yamagata warm themselves with a hot bowl of imoni.
This soup gets its name from its main ingredient, taro potatoes (satoimo), and cooking method,
simmering (niru). The dish has roots in the Edo period (1603-1867), when boatmen would boil
taro potatoes with dried codfish on the banks of the Mogami River, an important waterway used
to transport trade goods.

The dish has evolved since then, and many local variations exist; typically, however, it is a
soy-sauce-based soup with konnyaku (konjac), long onion, and beef, in addition to taro potatoes.
Riverside imoni parties, known as imonikai, have become a regular autumn event, and Yamagata
has hosted Japan’s largest Imoni Festival since 1989. It is held in September on the banks of the
Mamigasaki River, where organizers prepare 30,000 servings of imoni. To carry out such a
large-scale effort, they use a huge multiton pot nicknamed “Nabetaro.” After the soup is
prepared, it is distributed to smaller pots for serving, using an excavator tractor in place of a
ladle.

There have been several “generations” of Nabetaro over the years. Nabetaro Il is 1.6 meters
tall, 6 meters in diameter, and weighs 3.2 tons. It was used at the Imoni Festival from 1993 to
2018. It now rests here, along the bank of the Tachiya River near Yamadera.

Nabetaro and the Yamagata Imoni Festival (Sign)

FARREUBRFERE (FR)

E\VOBFE., ILEOARIEENMNFETEREENDET , COA—TDATIE., Y MEELVDIEDELH
Fe, BREVVORAEENDBERITYT, FAGIFR (1603~1867 &) (CETHD. BMmETEMRT I
HOEERKIETHOERLNIDAIRT, MEELENY M EEAFIEE B TVVEENRFEELDN TUNET

LK, FEGHERL, SFSELEEIFELET, Ui, —ARBIICIE. Y MEICIA. ChIZRL,
EXF. FAZERALELOPA-—ADA—TTT , FEKEIWDARTITIMNBIFE/ —T1—E. EHED
FDITEICIEHOTHN, WA TIE, 1989 FLIE, BARKDFERXNFHABEINTNET 9 AL &
RoyB)OANIET, 3 AROFENAEINET  KIRELGIABEEITISH. THAKEBBIEFENSE X
BE M ABNMERINET, SHENEDRE., BEFORDVIC/NYDR—EFE->TNSHDIRISEE R THN
F7,

CNETIC, #iEA OFMARENFELCVET, ZKBHKENE. 216 A—ML. EFE 6 A—F
V. ESE 32 bUT, 1993 Fhvp 2018 FDNFERTHEASNTEFELE, WA CCWFFHEDILAIER
NEGAWCERESNTLET,



| | 023-022 |

Nabetaro and the Yamagata Imoni Festival (Web)

MABBLILERFES (V1)

On cold autumn days, many people in Yamagata warm themselves with a hot bowl of imoni.
This soup’s name is a combination of its main ingredient and cooking method; taro potatoes
(satoimo) which are simmered (niru). The dish has roots in the Edo period (1603-1867), when
boatmen would boil taro potatoes with dried codfish on the banks of the Mogami River, a major
waterway that was used to transport trade goods from Yamagata to other parts of the country.

Over the centuries, the dish has evolved, and there are many local variations. It is usually a soy-
sauce-based soup with konnyaku (or konjac, a firm gelatin made from mountain yam), long
onion (negi), and beef, as well as taro potatoes. Riverside imoni parties known as imonikai have
become a regular autumn event, and Yamagata has hosted Japan's largest Imoni Festival since
1989. It is held in September on the banks of the Mamigasaki River, where organizers prepare
30,000 servings of imoni. The recipe from a previous year’s celebration contained the following
ingredients:

3 tons of taro potato

1.2 tons of beef

3,500 sheets of konnyaku
3,500 stalks of long onion
200 kilograms of sugar

5 tons of water

700 liters of soy sauce

63 liters of sake

To carry out such a large-scale effort, they use a huge multiton pot nicknamed “Nabetaro.” After
simmering for over three hours, the soup is distributed to smaller pots for serving, using an
excavator tractor in place of a ladle.

There have been several “generations” of Nabetaro over the years. Nabetaro 11 is 1.6 meters tall
and 6 meters in diameter, and weighs 3.2 tons. It was used at the Imoni Festival from 1993 to
2018. It now rests along the bank of the Tachiya River near Yamadera.

Nabetaro and the Yamagata Imoni Festival (Web)
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Seasons of Yamadera - Spring (Web)
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The heavy snows on the mountainside begin to melt, and the forested slopes of Yamadera slowly
spring to life with fresh greenery. Scattered cherry trees typically bloom from mid-to late April,
and in June, toward the end of spring, colorful hydrangeas adorn the temple complex. The mild
weather makes for a comfortable hike through the temple grounds.

Yamadera hosts several springtime events, two of which are open to the public: the Ennin
Matsuri and the Sanno Matsuri. The Ennin Matsuri is held on April 14 to celebrate the birthday
of Yamadera’s founder, the monk Ennin (794-864). During this festival, visitors can attend a
memorial service at the temple’s main hall, the Konpon Chudo. The Sanno Matsuri is a festival
held on May 17. Three mikoshi portable shrines from Hie Shrine are carried to the streets below
the temple complex accompanied by traditional music.

Seasons of Yamadera — Spring (Web)
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Seasons of Yamadera - Summer (Web)
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In summer the verdant woods along the stone path to Yamadera’s inner sanctuary offer welcome
shade from the season’s intense heat. The mountainside echoes with the distinctive cries of
cicadas, a sound famously captured in verse by the haiku poet Matsuo Basho (1644-1694) in his
final work, the travelogue Oku no hosomichi (Narrow Road to the Deep North). Yamagata
Prefecture is Japan’s top producer of cherries, and visitors may encounter shopkeepers selling the
seasonal fruit along the roadside on the way to Yamadera.

Yamadera’s largest public summer event is the Banji Matsuri. This festival celebrates the legacy
of the larger-than-life huntsman Banji Banzaburo (dates unknown), who donated the land on
which Yamadera was built to its founder, the monk Ennin (794-864). According to legend, Banji
gave up hunting in the region after meeting Ennin. The animals of the mountain gathered before
them and danced in joy. The shishi-odori lion dance performed at the festival symbolizes this
event.
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Seasons of Yamadera - Autumn (Web)
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Morning mist rises from the forested mountains of Yamadera, and the leaves change from
summer green to the blazing reds and golden yellows of autumn. Visitors can warm themselves
with a hot bowl of imoni, a soup with taro potatoes, long onion, konnyaku, and beef, from one of
the shops on the way to the temple. The cooler weather makes for a brisk journey up to the
Godaido Hall, which offers views of the foliage across the surrounding valley.

The public is welcome to observe traditional Buddhist memorial services held at the Okunoin in
the upper reaches of Yamadera during the week of the autumnal equinox. Monks in training at
Yamadera must copy the Lotus Sutra in a time-consuming process that can take up to four years
to complete. On November 28, during leap years, monks form a ritual procession to the Nokyodo

sutra hall and present the completed sutras as an offering to Yamadera’s founder, Ennin (794—
864).

Seasons of Yamadera — Autumn (Web)
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Seasons of Yamadera - Winter (Web)
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Yamagata is one of Japan’s snowiest prefectures, and the mountainside temple is a blanket of
white in winter. Visitors should be sure to wear proper attire and footwear to handle the cold
weather and deep snow. The Godaido Hall near the top of the temple complex commands a
sweeping view of snow-covered peaks in the distance, reminiscent of a sumi ink painting.

In early January Yamadera is a popular choice for the first visit to a shrine or temple of the new
year (hatsumode). January 14 marks the death of Yamadera’s founder, Ennin (794-864). On this
day, the Kaisando, the hall in the temple’s upper reaches dedicated to Ennin, opens its doors, and
hosts a memorial ceremony in his honor.

Seasons of Yamadera — Winter (Web)
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Hie Jinja Shrine (Web
Bttt (V1)

Hie Jinja is a Shinto shrine at the base of the mountainside temple complex. The shrine was built
when Yamadera was founded as a tribute to Mt. Hieli, the sacred peak on which the headquarters
of the Tendai Buddhist school is located. Hie Jinja is dedicated to Sanno Gongen, the guardian
deity of Yamadera’s Mt. Hoju, and Mt. Hiei. A gongen is the manifestation of a Buddhist deity
(such as a buddha or bodhisattva) in the form of a Shinto deity (kami), and the shrine is a
reminder of the fusion of Buddhism and Shinto that existed before the Meiji era (1868-1912).
An enormous 1,000-year-old ginkgo tree thought to have been planted by Yamadera’s founder,
Ennin (794-864), towers in front of the shrine building. The tree is a Natural Monument.

Hie Jinja is perhaps best known for its Sanno Matsuri, an annual festival held on May 17. During
the festival, three mikoshi portable shrines from Hie Shrine are carried to the streets below the
temple complex accompanied by traditional music. The event culminates with the mikoshi
bearers dashing through the streets before returning to Hie Jinja. Unlike most events, rain is
considered a good omen for the Sanno Matsuri. Legend suggests that if even three drops of water
fall on the mikoshi, there will be a bountiful harvest for the coming year.

Hie Jinja Shrine (Web)
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